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Bridgwater & Taunton College

Report of the Governing Body

NATURE, OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES:

The members present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2024. Bridgwater & Taunton
College is located in the heart of Somerset with centres in Bridgwater, Taunton and Cannington.

The College has an excellent reputation both regionally and nationally as a highly successful provider of education and training.
itis an award winning College and, since merger, an OfSTED designated Good College, with 5 out of 8 standards being
awarded Outstanding. It has received 14 National Beacon Awards in recent years, including most recently a Beacon Award
for Suppeort for Students in 2024. Also notably, the College received a Queen’s Anniversary Award for Education in recognition
of its work with the NHS in becoming the first college in the country to be able to deliver nursing degrees. This was the third
Queen’s Anniversary Prize that the College has received, and we have become the first college to be recognised on three
oceasions.

Bridgwater & Taunton College recruited 23,825 (2022/23: 24,067} full and part-time students. The student population in the
year ended 31 July 2024 included 3,047 (2022/23: 2,994) 16-18 year olds and 409 (2022/23: 439) students following higher
educalion programmes.

The College now employs 913 full time equivalent staff.

BTC Corporate Services Limited, a subsidiary of the College, was incorporated on 16 July 2021 and commenced trading on
1 November 2021. The College has therefore prepared consolidated financial statements, as described in Note 1.

The College also works closely with local and regional employers and has an excellent track record in providing certificated
and bespoke training solutions for the business community.

Legal status

The Corperation was established under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 for the purpeses of conducting Bridgwater
& Taunton College. The College is an exempt charity for the purposes of Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011.

The Cerperation is directed by the members of the Corporation known as the Board of Governors hereafter.

Vision and Mission

The College's principle objectives as approved by its members are summarised in its Vision and Mission Statement, which
states:

Vision:
Transforming lives and communities through innovative leaming and partnerships
Mission Statement:

As a feading college of further and higher education, we will:
s  Deliver inspirational teaching, learning and skills development
e  Maintain a culiure that promotes a supportive, inclusive, and safe environment
s  Build highly effective partnerships that positively impact our students
¢ Positively influence the educational landscape.

The Board of Governors reviewed and reiterated this as part of the Strategic Planning process.

These aims are translated info an annual operating plan, the delivery of which is monitored on a termly basis. The 2023/24
Operating Plan was effective in moving the College’s aims and mission forward.
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Bridgwater & Taunton College

Public Benefit

Bridgwater & Taunton College is an exempt charity under the Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011 and following the machinery of
Government changes in July 2016 is regulated by the Secretary of State for Education. The members of the Governing Body,
who are trustees of the charity, are disclosed on page 15.

In sefting and reviewing the College’s strategic objectives, the Goveming Body has had due regard for the Charity
Commission’s guidance on public benefit and particulary upon its supplementary guidance on the advancement of education.
The guidance sets out the requirement that all organisations wishing to be recognised as charities must demonstrate, explicitly,
that their aims are for the public benefit.

In delivering its mission, the College provides the following identifiable public benefits through the advancement of education:

High-quality teaching

Widening participation and tackling social exclusion
Excellent employment record for students

Strong student support systems

Links with employers, industry and commerce
Links with local Enterprise Partnerships (LEPs)

Implementation of strategic plan

Each year the College prepares a rolling three-year Strategic Plan including Accommeodation Strategy and Financial Plan.
The Corporation monitors the performance of the College against these plans. The plans are reviewed and updated each
year. The College’s continuing strategic aims are to:

Our People — Unlocking potential, enabling everyone to thrive

QOur Students - Inspiring our students to succeed

Qur Partnerships — Driving economic development, business innovation & individual success
Qur Cperations — Enabling delivery of our Vision

oo =

The College’s specific financial objectives for 2023/24 and achievement of those objectives are addressed below.

Financial objectives
The College’s financial objectives set for 2023/24 were achieved and detailed below:

Financial health grade: At least Good

Staff costs as a % of income: No greater than 60.79% of income (after deducting FRS102 Pension costs)
Cash days (operating payments): No less than 50

Debt service cover ratio: At least 1.06

Underlying operating surplus (EBITDA): Greater than £2.5m

Adjusted current ratio: At least 1.21

The financial targets set for 2024/25 include:

Financial health grade: At least Good

Staff costs as a % of income: No greater than 61.1% of income (after deducting FRS102 Pension costs)
Cash days (operating payments): No less than 36

Debt service cover ratio: At least 1.2

Underlying operafing surplus (EBITDA): Greater than £2.5m

Adjusted current ratio: At least 1.2

The Financial Plan has been designed to underpin these aims whilst delivering robust financial health.
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Bridgwater & Taunton College

Performance indicators

The College is committed to continuous improvement and monitors its performance through a range of performance indicators
including:

Student achievement rates

Customer feedback indicators:

o Leamer Satisfaction surveys (including the College's own surveys, OFSTED Leamner View, National Student
Surveys, FE Choices)

o Employer Satisfaction surveys

o College employee satisfaction surveys

Leamner Destinations

Financial performance measured through the Education and Skills Funding Agency:

o Annual Finance Record

o The 3 year Financial Plan prepared annuaily

The College is committed to observing the importance of sector measures and indicators and uses the FE Choices data
available on the GOV.UK website which looks at measures such as success rates. The College is required to complete the
annual Finance Record for the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA). The College is assessed by the Education and
Skills Funding Agency as having a “Good" financial health grading for 2023/24.

At the most recent inspection of Bridgwater College & Taunton College by OfSTED (2019) the College was graded as “Good”.
A “no-notice” Care Standards visit occurred in October 2022 and was very positive with “outstanding’ grade awarded.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Financial results

The Group generated total income of £65,180k (2022/23: £58,426k), producing Eamings before Interest, Depreciation, Tax
and Amortisation (EBITDA) of £2,673k {(2022/23: £2,505k). Qverall the Group is reporting Total Comprehensive Income for
the year of £1,352k {2022/23; £18,577k). The recurring FRS 102 pension charge for the year was -£784k (2022/23: £2,121k).
Excluding these FRS 102 pension scheme charges, the Group produced an operating surplus of £934k (2022/23: £790k
surplus}.

Net Cash flow from Operating Activities was an inflow of £1,612k (2022/23: £7,238k inflow). The consofidated Balance Sheet
is showing a positive position with net assets of £54,076k (2022/23: £52,736) due to the FRS 102 pension adjustment. The
net current assets have reduced to £1,212k (2022/23: £3,968k).

Capital Projects investment increased during the year with the additions totalling £3,994k and related grant income received
totalled £265k, (2022/23: additions totalling £6,730k and related grant income received totalled £2,781k.)

Average pay costs continue fo rise, due to the College making a pay award and other factors beyond the College’s control
such as apprenticeship levy, pension deficit contributions and Teacher's Pension increase.

The increase in national interest rates to more normal levels during 2022/23, and several years of high deficit recovery
payments, meant that the LGPS retumned to surplus that year with a £6,782k surplus reported. During 2023/24 the surplus
increased to £10,068k . The LGPS employer rate rose from 14.8% to 18% on 1 April 2020. The Deficit Recovery Payment
was £74k per annum from 1 April 2023, (£330k in 2022/23).

The College has significant reliance on the education sector funding bodies for its principal funding source, largely from
recurrent grants. In 2023/24 the FE funding bodies provided 62% (2022/23. 59%) of the College's total income.

The College is a member of a company limited by guarantee called The Colleges Partnership Ltd which was acquired through
the merger with Somerset College in 2016. The principal activity of that company is the provision of vocational training
solutions, apprenticeship management solutions and professional leaming and development opportunities through contracts
with the MoD. in 2023/24 the College received £668k as payment in recognition it makes fo the educational direction of the
Company. 50% of the surpluses generated by the Company are atributable to the College; in the current year, the total
surplus amounted to £483k. A prior year adjustment was made to include 50% of net assets which totalled £563k.
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Bridgwater & Taunton College

Group companies

BTC Corporate Services Lid is a trading subsidiary, limited by Guarantee that was incorporated on 16 July 2021, it remained
dormant to 1 November 2021

The principal activity of BTC Corporate Services Lid is cleaning services. Any surpluses generated in the prior year by the
subsidiary were retained by the subsidiary due to negative assets caused by the LGPS adjustment. The LGPS adjustment in
the current year promoted an asset position on the balance sheet, therefore prior year tax losses will be utilised to cover any
tax due. In the current year, the operating surplus generated was £20k before pension adjustments (2022/23: £16k).

Treasury policies and objectives

Treasury management is the management of the College's cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance
consistent with those risks.

The College's treasury policy is to maintain cash balances to meet the working capital needs of the College, its planned
investment in fixed assets and repayment of loans, as they fall due. Any surplus funds are invested in Treasury Deposits, or
deposited in a business premium account with the College bankers, Barclays Bank, paying interest at the prevailing rate.

Short term borrowing for temporary revenue purposes is authorised by the Accounting Officer. Al other borrowing requires
the authorisation of the Corporation and shall comply with the requirements of the Financial Memorandum/Funding
Agreement.

CURRENT AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE

Student numbers
in 2023/24 the College has delivered activity that produced £43,224k in funding body main allocation funding (2022/23:

£39,339k). This increase was driven primarily by an increase in the national base funding rate, effective 1 August 2023. There
were 19,441 funded and 5,005 non-funded students throughout 2023/24.

Student achievements

Overall the College achievement rate for classroom based provision and apprenticeships was as follows:

2023/24 | 202223 |
Study Programmes l 82% | 81%
Adult Leamning Programmes 88% | 90%
Apprenticeships 70% | 65%

Curriculum developments

The College continues to offer a broad curriculum and high-quality courses in all 15 Subject Sector Areas, designed to engage
and develop the knowledge, skills and behaviours from Pre-Entry to Post- Graduate level.

As a 2020 provider we have successfully continued to implement the new T Level qualifications, with further routes in
Accountancy, Business and Engineering. This expansion of curriculum supports the strategic objective to grow 16-18 and
specifically Level 3 provision. In addition, we offer the T Level Foundation Year to support students to progress to T Levels
and employment. The delivery of T Levels is supported by an on-going investment in high-quality industry resources which
enables students to make positive progression.

The College has a national reputation for engaging with employers and using this engagement to drive curriculum innovation
and change. It continues review and align the curriculum in order to meet the needs of the students, employers and
community.

We continue to deliver a range of new curriculum to support skills. The Hinkley Point C continues to be supported by
curriculum delivered in specialist centres such as the Centre of Mechanical Excellence at our Construction Skills and
innovation Centre and our Welding Centre of Excellence at our Bridgwater campus. This ranges from employer funded skills
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Bridgwater & Taunton College

testing and re-skilling programmes, through to full apprenticeship programmes. In addition the College supports the nationai
growth in green energy through the National College for Nuclear.

An overall strategic focus on employer engagement maintains the strong development of our apprenticeship programme; we
remain the largest FE College provider of Apprenticeships in the UK. Growth in our apprenticeship contract has continued for
both Levy and SME employers. A high-quality and highly responsive offer supports skifls and the economy. The College in
conjunction with the University Centre Somerset (UCS) has shown particular growth in higher and degree apprenticeships,
which are closely aligned to our curriculum progression pathways from Level 3.

The College continues to develop UCS with a key strategic priority to grow university provision for the county, The on-going
development of new responsive curriculum, including Higher Technical Qualifications underpins this objective.

Health and care continues to be & significant area of provision with further development of our Nursing programmes, both in
FE and HE. We have continued to benefit from National Midwifery Council approval to be the first college in the country to be
able to deliver Nursing degrees. This has allowed us o widen programmes to include apprentice and undergraduate routes,
which has secured growth, and provided a respense in partnership with Somerset NHS Foundation Trust to a significant
workforce challenge in Somerset. This resulted in the College winning the Queens Anniversary Prize for Education in 2023.

The College maximises its Adult Education Budget to successfully support skills development and social mobility locally,
regionally and nationally in line with the Accountability Agreement. Locally the expansion of the offer to accommodate a growth
in ESOL demonstrates the on-going commitment to support our community and fransforming iives.

Events after the end of the reporting period

There are no significant post balance sheet events up fo the date of approval of these accounts. However, a proposal for
Strode College, Somerset to merge with Bridgwater & Taunton College has been made, this is now subject to due diligence
and the FE Commissioners approval,

Future prospects

Qur Vision is to ‘Transform Lives and Communities, through Innovative Learning and Partnerships. This bold and ambitious
vision is brought to |ife through our strategic plan and associated annual aperating plan. The strategic plan clearly arficulates
our four undering strategic priorities and three cross cutting themes. Together these support the delivery of our ambitions
each of the types of College provision in;

Programmes for School Leavers — To Deliver an Inspirational Experience

University Centre Somerset - To Transform Somerset through University Level Education

Apprenticeships — Transformational change for Employers and Apprentices

Adults — To Deliver high quality, proactive, flexible learning programmes to support adults in achieving their potential

For each of the provision types we use our award-winning approach to employer engagement to inform our curriculum design
and delivery. We also set out to extend existing relationships and develop new ones.

We remain the largest FE College provider of Apprenticeships in the UK, we are also the first FE College in the country to
deliver Nursing Degrees. These achievements and our work with employers across the UK, including supporting EDF Energy
and their supply chain to deliver one of Europe’s largest infrastructure projects, Hinkley Point C, have underpinned our national
reputation for strategic partnerships with employers. This reputation has brought us to the table with UK policy makers and
enables us to influence the development of skills policy.

Examples of future growth and opportunity include, but are not limited to:

The Health & Care sector is a strategic priority for the College and our University Centre Somerset (UCS) with significant
opportunities to work in partnership with the NHS to address the local and national skills shortage. We plan to build on the
successful National Midwifery Council (NMC) approval to deliver nursing degrees and move into other Allied Health and Care
disciplines. NHS partners are actively working with us to support our ambition to help them close the skills gaps within their
sector, We see this a catalyst for further growth of UCS and the launch of the new faculty of Health and Wellbeing. We made
a significant investment during 2023-24 in the recruitment of a Dean for UCS, focused on growth, development and student
experience. This extra capacity has helped drive forward our ambitions,
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Bridgwater & Taunton College

The Hinkley Point C (HPC) project is well underway with over 14,000 people on site. The College has been actively engaged
in training this civil engineering workforce. The next stage of the project is installation of the mechanical and electrical systems;
and work is well underway to deliver the essentiat skills to support this phase. New facilities and curriculum are being
established in our new centres of excellence in welding and mechanical engineering. Curriculum includes welding and pipe
fitting.

The Gravity Project is a development on the former Royal Ordinance Factory site, a 625-acre location in Puriton. The ambition
is to create thousands of employment opportunities in high tech, low carbon and energy sectors. The College has developed
a strategic partnership with the Gravity Project and is working closely with the project team to attract potential investors to the
site. This has the potential to be a transformational project for our community and the College. The first major investor has
been now named as Agratas, which was established by Tata Group. Agratas is in the advanced stages of planning the
development of an advanced manufacturing facility for battery technology. The College has established a strategic partnership
with Agratas and a range of other key stakeholders, including University of Bristol and is working hard to develop the skills
offer that will be required to support the training and recruitment of the ¢.4000 strong workforce.

Accommodation Developments

The College continues to progress its Estates Strategic plans. Significant developments include the following:

Completion of the refurbishment of the Sports Hall at the Taunton Campus

Installed solar PV array at the National College for Nuclear, Cannington Campus

Progressed refurbishment of student residential properties in Taunton

Refurbishment of bedrooms at the Canonsgrove Halls of Residence at Trull

Refurbishment of student accommodation at the Cannington Halls of Residence, Cannington Campus
Progressed the creation of an “environmental space living lab” at the Cannington Campus

Going Concern

The College has prepared an annual budget for 2024/25 based upon actual funding allocations for the year. Further forecasts
have been prepared for the following two years which indicate the College will continue as a going concern for at least the
ensuing twelve months.

Risk Management

The College has a comprehensive Risk Management Policy reviewed which is approved by the Board of Governors. The
Audit Committee monitors the risk register on a termly basis with the full Board of Govemors carrying out an annual review.
Key risks are linked to the Strategic Plan and include risks associated with:

Political and economic changes

Physical resources and external factors

Student recruitment

Financial: meeting targets and managing budgets
Management and staffing

Reputational

e & & & & @

Risk management is fully embedded within the College, with staff at all levels trained and encouraged to consider risks and
opportunities in their area of responsibility. Through regular review and monitoring, strategic and operational risks are
constantly re-assessed, enabling early planning and re-alignment of operational plans, where appropriate, to effectively
manage any emerging issues and mitigate the impact on the College.

RESOURCES
The College has various resources that it can deploy in pursuit of its strategic objectives.

Tangible resources include the main College Campuses; Bridgwater, Taunton and Cannington, the McMillan Theatre,
Canonsgrove, and Rodway Farm.
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Bridgwater & Taunton College

Financial

At 31 July 2024 the Group held cash of £9,221k, (2022/23: £12,845k).

People

The Group employs 913 full time equivalent staff, of whom 841 are teaching staff and teaching related support staff.

Reputation

The College has a very good reputation locally and nationally. Maintaining a quality brand is essential for the College's
success at attracting students and external relationships.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The College has undertaken further work during the year to develop and embed the system of intemal control, including
financial, operational and risk management which is designed to protect the College’s assets and reputation.

Based on the strategic plan, the Senior Management Team undertakes a comprehensive review of the risks to which the
College is exposed.

A risk register is maintained at the College level which is reviewed termly by the Audit Commitiee and at least annually by the
full Board. The risk register identifies the key risks, the likelihood of those risks occurring, their potential impact on the College
and the actions being taken to reduce and mitigate the risks.

The principal financial risks and uncertainties for 2023/24 and beyond are likely to be the impact of the cost of living related
matters as a consequence of inflation and persistently high interest rates in the UK economy. The budget set for 2024/25
reflects current anticipated impact in various increased costs.

Outlined below is a description of the principal risk factors that may affect the College. Not all the factors are within the
College’s control. Cther factors besides those listed below may also adversely affect the College.

Government funding

The College has considerable reliance on continued government funding through the further education sector funding bodies
and through Office for Students. In 2023/24, 63% of the College’s revenue was ultimately publicly funded and this level of
requirement is expected fo continue. There can be no assurance that government policy or practice will remain the same or
that public funding will continue at the same levels or on the same terms.

The College is aware of several issues which may impact on future funding:

» Funding rates for 16-18 year olds, which may not reflect rising costs; in particular as a consequence of the increase in
employer national insurance contributions from April 2025
Capping of the ESFA allowance of Apprenticeship funding
Funding arrangements to support the training for the nuclear new build at Hinkley Point

This risk is mitigated in a number of ways:

Funding is derived through a number of direct and indirect contractual arrangements
By ensuring the College is rigorous in delivering high quality education and training

»  Considerable focus and investment is placed on maintaining and managing key relationships with the various funding
bodies and larger employers

o  Ensuring the College is focused on those priority sectors which will continue to benefit from public furding

» Regular dialogue with funding bodies
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Bridgwater & Taunton College

Maintain adequate funding of pension liabilities

The actuarial position is now an asset position, the College continues to be mingful that changes to underlying assumptions
could return this to a net liability position.
Failure to maintain the financial viability of the College

The financial viability is dependent upon achievement of income targets and the management of costs. There is a risk that the
College fails to recruit students to achieve its income targets and/or fails to contrel expenditure.

The College has robust procedures in place to monitor its financial performance enabling timely action to be taken to address
any negative variances arising during the year and thereby maintaining financial viability.

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS

In line with other colleges and with universities, Bridgwater & Taunton College has many stakehelders. These include:

Students

Education sector funding bodies

Schools, in particular in Bridgwater and Taunton
Staff

Local employers (with specific links)

Local Authorities

Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEPs)
Government Offices

The local community

Other FE and HE institutions

Trade Unions

Professional bodies

Suppliers

The College’s Partnership

Charitable bodies, most notably the Edge Foundation

& & & & & & & & 5 ¢ % B " ¢ 0

The College recognises the importance of these relationships and engages in regular communication with them through the
College Internet site and by meetings.

Equal opportunities

As an Equal Opportunities employer, the College has made a commitment to support job applicants and staff who may have
disabilities, to ensure they receive proper access to employment cpportunities. The Cellege is also recognised by the
Employment Service as a “Posilive about Disabled” employer. All teaching sections in the College developed and
implemented curriculum plans linked to College policies on Equaliy & Diversity. Staff and student Equality & Diversity statistics
were monitored and reviewed to ensure equality of opportunity and to share good working praclices.

Disability statement

The College seeks to achieve the objectives set down in the Disability Discrimination Act 1995 as amended by the Special
Education Needs and Disability Act 2001 and 2005.

Access

Almost all of the College campus is accessible for wheelchair users. At Bridgwater, Taunton and Cannington Campuses,
automatic doors, ramps and lifts have been installed to allow easy access. There are disabled toilets in each part of the
building.

Specialist equipment

Information about specialist equipment and software for students to use is widely available and listed in the information packs
given to all students. The information can be made available on tapes, large print and in Braille.
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Admission Policy

The College Charter describes the Admission Policy for all students. Appeals against a decision not to offer a place are dealt
with through a Complaints Policy.

Specialist staffing

The College has appointed specialist staff to support students with learning and sensory disabilities. These include leaming
support assistants, note takers, hearing impaired facilitators and specialist tutors of those with Special Learning Difficulfies. In
additicn, the College buys in the services of educational psychologists.

There is a total of more than 75 FTE learning support staff that provide a variety of support for learning encompassing personal
care, physiotherapy, fransport suppert, note taking and behaviour support. There is a continuing programme of staff
development for these staff which includes a mandatory induction programme either with options to take part in NVQ units
and Leaming Support qualifications.

Specialist programmes

Specialist programmes are described in the College prospectus and information guides. Achievements and destinations are
recorded and published in the standard College format.

Counselling and Welfare Services

Counselling and welfare services are available for all students and are described in the College Charter, Student Handbook
and College website.

Response to climate crisis

Addressing environmental impact

Bridgwater & Taunton College continues to actively reduce its carbon usage and impact on the wider environment on its
journey to net zero.

During 2023/24 the College's strategic priorities were:

Decarbonisation of the College operations and estate

Build sustainability into College activities and encourage biodiversity across our campuses
Maximise student engagement and leamer voice in climate action and awareness
Promote and raise awareness of the role we all play in creating a sustainable future

Drive curriculum innovation to ensure we deliver green skills for a new zero future

Environmental Statement

The College seeks to continuously improve its environmental performance in the areas of infrastructure and operations,
academic courses and communication. It has drawn up an Environmental Action Plan which aims to:

»  Give all students the opportunity to raise their awareness of environmental issues through incorporation of material on
environment and sustainable development into courses.

¢ Provide education, training and encouragement on environmental issues to College employees so that they can pursue
their work in an environmentally responsible way,

¢  Reduce the volume of waste produced and recycle where appropriate.

Assess the environmental impact of all purchases, as far as possible, in terms of their raw materials, manufacture,

distribution, use and disposal.

Encourage the use of environmentally-friendly transport by staff and students.

Reduce energy consumption and incorporate fong-term strategies for energy efficiency into planning and development.

Reduce, where possible, harmful environmental impacts of College sites/buildings and future developments/alterations.

Work with the local community and others to develop and pursue environmental initiatives.

Set minimum target of BREEAM "Very Good’ for all new buildings and, where possible, ‘Exceflent’.
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Trade Union Facility Time

Bridgwater & Taunton College

The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 require Bridgwater & Taunton College to publish

information on facility time arrangements for trade union. This is show below:

Relevant Union Officials during the period
Number of employees
Full time equivalent number of employees

Percentage of time spent on facility time
4 employees who were relevant Union Officials spent between 1 and 50% of their
working hours on facility time (2022: 7 employees)

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time
Total cost of facility time (E000's)

Total pay bill (£000's}

Percentage of total bill spent on facility time

Disclosure of information to auditors

2024
College

17
33,834
0.05%

2023
College

17
34,347
0.05%

The members who held office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is no
relevant audit information of which the College’s auditors are unaware; and each member has taken all the steps that he or
she ought to hake taken to be aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the College’s auditors are aware

of that informati

Approved by

Mr D Rayner N,
Chair of Governors

er of the members of the Corporation on 5 December 2024 and signed on its behalf by:
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Bridgwater & Taunton College

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control

The following statement is provided to enable readers of the annual report and accounts of the College to obtain a better
understanding of its govemnance and legat structure. This statement covers the period from 15t August 2023 to 31t July 2024
and up fo the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

The College endeavours to conduct its business;

i. inaccordance with the seven principles identified by the Commitiee on Standards in Public Life (selflesshess, integrity,
objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership);
ii.  in full accordance with the guidance to colleges from the Association of Colleges in The Code of Good Govemance for

English Colleges (“the Code”)

In the opinion of the Governors, the College complies with all the provisions of the Code, and it has complied throughout the
year ended 31 July 2024. This opinion is based on an external Board review carried out by the Association of Colleges in
August 2023. The Governing Body recognises that, as a body entrusted with both public and private funds, it has a particular
duty to observe the highest standards of corporate governance at all times. In carrying out its responsibilifies, it takes full
account of The Code of Good Govemance for English Colleges issued by the Association of Colleges, which it formally
adopted on 15 October 2015.

The College is an exempt charity within the meaning of Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011, The Governors, who are also the
Trustees for the purposes of the Charities Act 2011, confirm that they have had due regard for the Charity Commission’s
guidance on public benefit and that the required statements appear elsewhere in these financial statements.
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The Corporation

The members who served on the Corporation during the year and up to the date of signature of this report were as listed in
the table below:

Name Date of Ref Term of Date of end of Status Committees Board
Appointment Office term in Served Attendance
office/Date of
resignation
Mr D Randall July 2021 4 years July 2024 Ful Chair of FPGP; Chairof | 100%
{Chair of the Board) - Search
Mr A Berry June 2017 Ex officio N/A Principal & CEO FPGP, Buildings, Quality | 100%
& Standards, Search
Mr L Brett July 2024 4 years July 2028 Full Chair of Buildinas 5%
Mr D Rayner July 2024 4 years July 2028 Full Chair of Audit, Search 75%
Mr A Hunt July 2024 4 years July 2028 Full Chair of Quality & 100%
Standards
Mr N Skyrme July 2022 4 years July 2026 Full FPGP 100%
Mrs C Pearce July 2024 3 years July 2027 Full 25%
Mr D Taylor June 2020 4 years July 2024 Full Audit 75%
Mr M Westlake June 2020 4 Years July 2024 Full 100%
Ms B Hawkins September 2021 4 Years July 2025 Full Quality & Standards 100%
Ms H Stapleton February 2022 4 Years July 2026 Full 100%
Mr A Collett September 2021 4 Years July 2025 Staff Govemnor Quality & Standards 50%
Ms H Lenthall September 2021 4 Years July 2025 Staff Governor 0%
matemily leave)
Ms J Woodland December 2023 Matemity July 2025 Staff Governor 100%
leave cover
Ms 5 Harris-Roberts Saptember 2022 4 Years July 2026 Staff Governor Quality & Standards 100%
Mr A Greenwood August 2023 1 Year July 2024 Student Governor Quality & Standards 75%
Mr J Jenking December 2023 1 Year July 2024 Student Governar Quality & Standards 100%
Ms L Mills June 2024 4 Years June 2028 Full Quality & Standards 100%
Mr M Cox Jung 2024 4 Years June 2028 Full 100%
Ms R Wyke March 2024 4 Years March 2028 Full 50%
Ms 8 Otley-Summers | August 2023 1 Year December 2023 Student Governor Quality & Standards 50%

M Nettle acted as Clerk to the Board of Governors,
Governance Framework

It is the Corporation’s responsibility to bring independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy, performance, resources
and standards of conduct.

The Corporation is provided with regular and timely information on the overall financial performance of the College together
with other information such as performance against funding targets, proposed capital expenditure, quality matters and
personnel-related matters such as health and safety and environmental issues. The Corporation meets at least once each

term.

The Corporation conducts its business through a number of committees. Each committee has terms of reference, which have
been approved by the Corporation. These committees are Finance, Personnel and General Purposes, Quality & Standards,
Remuneration, Search, Audit and Building Projects Committee. Full minutes of all meetings, except those deemed to be
confidential by the Corporation, are available on the College's website at www.btc.ac.uk or from the Clerk to the Corporation
at:

Bridgwater & Taunten College

College Way, Bath Road

Bridgwater

Somerset TAS 4PZ

The Clerk to the Corporation maintains a register of financial and personal interests of the govemners, The register is available
for inspection at the above address.

All Governors are able to take independent professional advice in furtherance of their duties at the College’s expense and
have access to the Clerk to the Corporation, who is respensible to the Board for ensuring that all applicable procedures and
requlations are complied with. The appointment, evaluation and removal of the Clerk are matters for the Corporation as a
whole.
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Formal agendas, papers and reporis are supplied to Governors in a timely manner, prior to Board meetings, and are also
availabie in a secure online space for Govemors. Briefings are provided on an ad hoc basis.

The Corporation has a strong and independent non-executive element and no individual or group dominates its decision-
making process. The Corporation considers that each of its non-executive members is independent of management and free
from any business or other relaticnship which could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement.

There is a clear division of responsibility in that the roles of the Chair of Governors and Accounting Officer are separate.

Appointments to the Corporation

Any new appointments to the Corporation are a matter for the consideration of the Corporation as a whole. The Corporation
has a search committee, consisting of three members of the Corporation, which is responsible for the selection and nomination
of any new member for the Corporation’s consideration. The Corporation is responsible for ensuring that appropriate training
is provided as required.

Members of the Corporation are appointed for a term of office not exceeding four years.

Corporation performance

The Board of Governors conducts an annual self-assessment to review and consider its performance over the past year and
set targets for the next year. The most recent assessment was carried out in October 2024 where it was determined that all
major targets set for 2023/24 had been achieved.

Remuneration Committee

Throughout the year ending 31 July 2024 the College's Remuneration Committee comprised three members of the Board of
Governors. The Committee’s responsibilities are to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration and benefits of
the Accounting Officer and cther key management personnel.

Details of remuneration for the year ended 31 July 2024 are set cut in note 7 to the financial statements.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises two members of the Board of Governors. The Committee operates in accordance with written
terms of reference approved by the Corporation.

The Audit Committee meels on a termly basis and provides a forum for reporting by the College’s internal, reporting
accountants and financial statements auditors, who have access to the Committee for independent discussion, without the
presence of College management. The Committee also receives and considers reports from the main FE funding bodies as
they affect the College’s business.

The College’s internal auditors review the systems of internal control, risk management controls and governance processes
in accordance with an agreed plan of input and report their findings to management and the Audit Committee,

Management is responsible for the implementation of agreed audit recommendations and internal audit undertakes periodic
follow-up reviews to ensure such recommendations have been implemented.

The Audit Committee also advises the Board of Governors on the appointment of internal, reporting accountants and financial
statements auditors and their remuneration for audit and non-audit work as well as reporting annuaily to the Corporation.

Committee Member | Meetings Attended |
Denys Rayner - ' 3 :
David Taylor 3
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Internal control

Scope of responsibility

The Board of Governors is ultimately responsible for the College’s system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness.
However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Governors has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Principal, as Accounting Officer, for maintaining a
sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of the College's policies, aims and objectives, whilst
safequarding the public funds and assets for which he is personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities
assigned to him in the Financial Memorandum between Bridgwater & Taunton College and the funding bodies. He is also
responsible for reporting to the Board of Governors any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

The purpose of the system of internal controf

The system of intemal control is designed to manage risk to a reascnable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to
achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.
The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement
of College policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in
Bridgwater & Taunton College for the year ended 31 July 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and
accounts,

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Governors has reviewed the key risks to which the College is exposed together with the operating, financial and
compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. They are of the view that there is a formal ongoing
process for identifying, evaluating and managing the College's significant risks that has been in place for the period ending 31
July 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board
of Governors.

The risk and control framework

Internal controls were continuously reviewed with the infroduction of working from home, the remote log in allowed all existing
Financial internal controls to remain unaffected. Reports fo the governing body were approved by the board and submitted
within the timeframe. The Senior Management Team were provided with timely information in order to be able to react to
changing circumstances.

A number of planned Internal audits were conducted remotely whilst the College was under limited access.

The system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management information, administrative procedures
including the segregation of duties, and a system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes:

comprehensive budgeting systems with an annual budget, which is reviewed and agreed by the governing body
regular reviews by the governing body of periodic and annual financial reports which indicate financial performance
against forecasts

» selting targets to measure financial and other performance

» clearly defined capital investment control guidelines
the adoption of formal project management disciplines, where appropriate.

Bridgwater & Taunton College has an irternal audit service, which operates in accordance with the requirements of the ESFA’s
Post 16 Audit Code of Practice. The work of the internal audit service is informed by an analysis of the risks to which the
College is exposed, and annual internal audit plans are based on this analysis. The analysis of risks and the internal audit
plans are endorsed by the Board of Govemors on the recommendation of the audit committee. At minimum, annually, the
Head of Internal Audit (HIA) provides the goveming body with a report on internal audit activity in the College. The report
includes the HIA's independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the College’s system of risk management,
controls and govemance processes.
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Responsibilities under funding agreements

The Department for Education and Education and Skills Funding Agency introduced new controls for the college on 29
November 2022 on the day that the Office for National Statistics reclassified colleges as public sector organisations in the
national accounts, The ESFA chief executive communicated these changes to all college accounting officers and explained
plans to infroduce a college financial handbook in 2024. The college has reviewed its policies, procedures and approval
processes in line with these new requirements to ensure there are systems in place to identify and handle any transactions
for which DfE approval is required.

Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Principal has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. His
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by:

the work of the internal auditors
the work of the executive managers within the College who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of
the internal control framework

o comments made by the College's financial statements auditors, the reporting accountant for regularity assurance, the
appointed funding auditors (for colleges subject to funding audit} in their management letters and other reports.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Audit Committee, which
oversees the work of the internal auditor and other sources of assurance, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure
continuous improvement of the system is in place.

The senior management team receives reports setting out key performance and risk indicators and considers possible control
issues brought to their attention by early warning mechanisms, which are embedded within the departments and reinforced
by risk awareness fraining. The senicr management team and the Audit Committee also receive regular reports from internal
audit and other sources of assurance, which include recommendations for improvement. The Audit Committee's role in this
area is confined to a high-level review of the arrangements for intemnal control. The Board of Govemors’ agenda includes a
regular item for consideration of risk and control and receives reports therecen from the senior management team and the Audit
Commitiee. The emphasis is on obtaining the relevant degree of assurance and not merely reporting by exception. At its
December 2024 meeting, the Board of Governors considered reports on assurance by considering documentation from the
senior management team, intemal and external audit, and taking account of events since 31 July 2024.

Based on the advice of the Audit Committee and the Accounting Officer, the Corporation is of the opinion that the College has
an adequate and effective framework for govemance, risk management and control, and has fulfilled its statutory responsibility
for “the effective and efficient use of rescurces, the solvency of the institution and the body and the safeguarding of their
assels”.

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Corporation considers that the College has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concem basis in preparing
the financjal statements.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 5 December 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

Andy Berry
Chair of Governlirs Principal and Civigt Executive
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Governing Body’s statement on the College’s regularity, propriety and compliance
with Funding body terms and conditions of funding

As accounting officer, | confirm that the corporation has had due regard to the framework of authorities goveming regularity,
priority and compliance, and the requirements of grant funding agreements and contracts with ESFA, and has considered its
responsibility to notify ESFA of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with those authorities and terms and
conditions of funding.

| confirm on behalf of the corporation that after due enquiry, and to the best of my knowledge, | am able to identify any
material irregular or improper use of funds by the corporation, or material non-compliance with the framework of authorities
and the terms and conditions of funding under the corporation’s grant funding agreements and contracts with ESFA, or any
other public funder. This includes the elements outlined in the “Dear accounting officer” letter of 29 November 2022 and
ESFA's bite size guides.

| confirm that no instances of material imegularity, impropriety, funding noncompliance, or non-compliance with the framework
of authorities have been discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified
to ESFA.

Andy Berry
Accounting Officer
5 December|2024

Chair of Governors-
5 December 2024
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Statement of Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation

The members of the Cerporation are required to present audited financial statements for each financial year.

Within the terms and conditions of the corporation’s grant funding agreements and contracts with ESFA, the corporation -
through its Accounting Officer — is required to prepare financial statements and an operating and financial review for each
financial year in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice — Accounting for Further and Higher Education,
ESFA’s coliege accounts direction and the UK's Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the corporation and its surplus / deficit of income over expenditure for that period.

In preparing the financial statements, the corporation is required to:
+ select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently
¢  make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

o state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements

» assess whether the corporation is a going concem, noting the key supporting assumptions qualifications or
mitigating actions as appropriate

»  prepare financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to assume that the college will
continue in operation.

The corporation is also required to prepare a Members’ Report which describes what it is trying to do and how it is going about
it, including information about the legal and administrative status of the corporation.

The corporation is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time,
the financial position of the college and which enable it to ensure that the financial statements are prepared in accordance
with relevant legislation including the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 and Charities Act 2011, and relevant accounting
standards. it is responsible for taking steps that are reasonably apen to it fo safeguard its assets and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.

The corporation is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the its website; the work carried out by auditors does not
involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have
occurred to the financial statements since they were initially presented on the website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
goveming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Members of the corporation are responsible for ensuring that expenditure and income are applied for the purposes intended
and that the financial transactions conform to the authorities that govemn them. In addition, they are responsible for ensuring
that funds from ESFA, and any other public funds, are used only in accordance with ESFA's grant funding agreements and
contracts and any other conditions, that may be prescribed from time to time by ESFA, or any other public funder, including
that any transactions entered into by the corporation are within the delegated authorities set out in the *Dear accounting officer”
letter of 29 November 2022 and ESFA's bite size guides. Members of the corporation must ensure that there are appropriate
financial and management controls in place to safeguard public and other funds and ensure they are used properly. In addition,
membershof the corporation are responsible for securing economic, efficient and effective management of the corporation's
resources\and expenditure so that the benefits that should be derived from the application of public funds from ESFA and
other publi Podies are not put at risk.

Approved I:wr order of the members of the Corporation on 5 December 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

A

Denys Rayner
Chair of Governor's
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Corporation of Bridgwater & Taunton College

We have audited the financial statements of Bridgwater and Taunton Cellege (the ‘College’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’}
for the year ended 31 July 2024 which comprise the Group and College's Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Group
and College's Statement of Changes in Reserves, the Group and College’s Balance Sheet, the Group’s Statement of Cash
Flows and the related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
United Kingdom accounting standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion, the financial statements:

= Give atrue and fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state
of the Group’s and of the College’s affairs as at 31 July 2024 and of the Group's surplus of income over expenditure
for the year then ended;

*  Have been properly prepared in accordance with the United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

*  Have been properly prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further
and Higher Education;

*  Meet the requirements of the cumrent College Accounts Direction issued by the Office for Students; and

*  Meetthe requirements in HM Treasury's document, ‘Managing Public Money', and other related obligations.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs UK) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the group and College in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Corporation’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the College's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at
least twelve months from when the original financial statements were authorised for issue.

Qur respensibilities and the respensibilities of the Members of the Corporation with respect to going concem are described in
the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Report of the Goveming Body, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Corporation is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information, and we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to reportin this regard.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

We are required to report on the following matters by the Post 16 Audit Code of Practice issued by the Education and Skifls
Funding Agency:

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where, in our opinion:

e Proper accounting records have not been kept; and
* The financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; and
¢ Allinformation and explanations required for the audit were not received.

We are required to report on the following matters by the Accounts Direction issued by the Office for Students;
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in our opinion:

» The provider's grant and fee income, as disclosed in the note to the accounts, has been materially misstated; and
» The provider's expenditure on access and participation activities for the financial year has been materially misstated.

Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation of Bridgwater and Taunton College

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation set out on page 20, the
College's Corporation is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair view and for such
intemnal control as the Members of the Corparation determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements the Members of the Corporation are responsible for assessing the group and College's
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the members either intend to liquidate the group or the College or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with |SAs {(UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with
our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to
which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below;

As part of our audit planning, we obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that is applicable to the
group and College. We gained an understanding of the industry in which the group operates as part of this assessment to
identify the key laws and regulations affecting the group. As part of this, we reviewed the College’s website for indication of
any regulations and certification in place and discussed these with the relevant individuals responsible for compliance. The
key regulations we identified were the regulafions of the Department for Education, the Education & Skills Funding Agency
(ESFA), the Office for Students {OfS) and Ofsted, as well as health and safety regulations, employment law and breaches of
The General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR). We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact
on the preparation of the financial statements such as the College Accounts Direction for 2023 to 2024 and the Post-16 Audit
Code of Practice issued by the ESFA and HM Treasury's ‘Managing Public Money' document.

We discussed with management how the compliance with these laws and regulations is monitored and discussed policies and
proceduresin place, As part of our planning procedures, we assessed the risk of any non-compliance with laws and regulations
on the group's ability to continue operating and the risk of material misstatement to the accounts. Based on this understanding
we designed our audit procedures fo identify non-compliance with such laws and regulations. Our procedures involved the
following:
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Enquiries of management regarding their knowledge of any non-compliance with laws and regulations that could affect

the financial statements.

s Review of the College’s risk register and minutes of Board and Audit Committee meetings for any potential or actual
instances of non-compliance.

s Review of the College’s GDFR policy and enquiries of the Coliege's compliance officer as to the occurrence and outcome
of any reportable breaches.

s Review of the Information Commissicner's Office {ICC) website for any enforcement actions or decision notices impacting

the College.

Review of Ofsted reports, and inquiries of management of points raised and action plans developed.

Reviewed legal and professional costs to idenfify any possible non-compliance or legal costs in respect of non-

compliance.

As part of our enquiries, we discussed with management whether there had been any instances of known or alleged fraud, of
which management confirmed there were none.

We assessed the susceptibility of the financial statements to material misstatement through management override or fraud
and obtained an understanding of the contrals in place to mitigate the risk of fraud. We also evaluated management's
incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements- Based upon our understanding we
designed and conducted audit procedures including:

¢ Auditing the risk of fraud in revenue recognition, including testing of sales cut-off and deferred income.

e Audited the risk of management override of controls, including through testing journal entries and other adjustments for
appropriateness, and evaluating the business rationale of significant transactions outside the normal course of business.

e Reviewed estimates and judgements made in the accounts for any indication of bias and challenged assumptions used
by management in making the estimates.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those leading
to a material misstatement in the financial statements. This risk increases the further removed non-compliance with laws and
regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements as we are less likely to become aware of
instances of non-compliance. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment, collusion, omission or misrepresentation.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilites. This description forms part of our audit report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Corporation as a body in accordance with statutory requirements. Cur audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Corporation as a body those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by iaw, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Corporation, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or the opinions we have formed.

Dumcan. (2slic

PKF Francis Clark
Registered Auditors
North Quay House
Sutton Harbour
Plymouth

PL4 ORA

5 December 2024
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Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity for the Year Ended 31 July
2024

To: The Corporation of Bridgwater and Taunton College and Secretary of State for Education Acting through the Education
and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA)

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 28 October 2024 and further to the requirements and conditions
of funding in ESFA’s grant funding agreements and contracts, or those of any other public funder, we have carried out an
engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether anything has come to our attention that would suggest, in all material
respects, the expenditure disbursed and income received by Bridgwater & Taunton College during the period 1 August 2023
to 31 July 2024 have not been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial fransactions do not conform
to the authorities which govern them.

The framework that has been applied is set out in the Post 16 Audit Code of Practice (“the Code”) issued by the ESFA, In line
with this framework, our work has specifically not considered income received from the main funding grants, for which the
ESFA has other assurance arrangements in place.

This report is made solely to the Corporation of Bridgwater and Taunton College and the ESFA in accordance with the terms
of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Corporation of Bridgwater and Taunton
College and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Corporation of Bridgwater and Taunton
College and the ESFA for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Bridgwater and Taunton College and the reporting accountant

The Corporation of Bridgwater and Taunton College is responsible, under the requirements of the Further & Higher Education
Act 1992, subsequent legislation and related regulations and guidance, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income
received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which

govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance and are
to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the Code. We report
to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects,
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2023 to 31 July 2024 have not been applied to
purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Post 16 Audit Code of Practice issued by the ESFA. We performed a
limited assurance engagement as defined in that framework.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and explanations in
order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently does
not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable
assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

QOur engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the College’s
income and expenditure,

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

e inspection and review of documentation providing evidence of governance procedures, including the self-assessment
questionnaire prepared by Bridgwater and Taunton College;
Evaluation of the system of internal controls for authorisation and approval; and

s Performing substantive tests on relevant transactions.
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o Review of the scope, methodology and findings of the work of internal audit, in particular in respect of ESFA Funding
Rules compliance.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the expenditure
disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2023 fo 31 July 2024 has not been applied fo purposes intended
by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Duncan. {1slic

PKF Francis Clark

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
North Quay House

Sutton Harbour

Plymouth

PL4 ORA

5 December 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

For the year ended 31 July 2024

INCOME

Funding body grants

Tuition fees and education contracts
Other grants and contracts
Other income

Investment income

Total income

EXPENDITURE

Staff costs

Other operating expenses
Depreciation

Interest and other finance costs
Total expenditure

Operating surplus on continuing activities
FRS 102 pension adjustments - recurring

Bridgwater & Taunton College

Surplus / (Deficit) before other gains and losses

Share of operating surplus in Joint Venture

Surplus f {Deficit) for the year
Gain on disposal of assets

Actuarial {loss) / gain in respect of pensions schemes
Total Comprehensive Income for the year

All comprehensive income is unrestricted.

Notes Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July
2024 2023

Group College Group College

£000 £'000 £000 £'000

Restated Restated

2 46,106 46,106 41,805 41,805
3 8444 8,444 7,729 7.729
4 841 841 1,108 1,108
5 8,978 9,045 7,483 7,547
6 811 808 301 301
65,180 65,244 58,426 58,490

7 37,623 36,776 36,743 36,019
8 21,623 22 556 18,670 19,447
11 3,904 3,895 3477 3471
9 2 312 867 861
63,462 63,539 59,757 59,798

934 914 790 775

784 791 {2,121) (2,083)

1,718 1,705 (1,331} {1,308)

10 1,718 1,705 {1,331) (1,308)
483 483 13 13

2,201 2,188 {1,318) (1,295)

25 (849) {856) 19,895 19,636
1,352 1,332 18,577 18,341

Ali items of income and expenditure relate to continuing activities.
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Consolidated and College Statement of Changes in Reserves

For the year ended 31 July 2024

Group
Balance at 1 August 2022

Restatement of investment in joint venture
Restated Balance at 1 August 2022

(Deficit) from the income and expenditure account

Other comprehensive income

Investment revaluation

Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure reserves

Balance at 31 July 2023

Balance at 1 August 2023

Surplus from the income and expenditure account

Other comprehensive income
investment revaluation
Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure reserves

Balance at 31 July 2024

College

Balance at 1 August 2022

Restatement of investment in joint venture
Restated Balance at 1 August 2022

{Deficit) from the income and expenditure account

Other comprehensive income

Investment revaluation

Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure reserves

Balance at 31 July 2023

Balance at 1 August 2023

Surplus from the income and expenditure account

Other comprehensive income
Investment revaluation
Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure reserves

Balance at 31 July 2024

Income and Revaluation Total
expenditure reserve
account
£000 £1000 £'000
Restated Restated Restated
28,333 5,284 33,617
562 - 562
28,895 5,284 34179
(1,331) {1,331)
19,895 - 19,895
- (7} {7}
101 (101) .
47,560 5,176 52,738
47,560 5,176 52736
2,201 2,201
(849) - (849)
- {12) (12)
110 {110} -
49,022 5,054 54,076
Income and Revaluation Total
expenditure reserve
account

£000 £000 £'000
Restated Restated Restated
28,543 5,284 33,827
562 - 562
29,105 5,284 34,389
{1,308) (1,308)
19,636 - 19,636
- {7 ]

101 (101} -
47,534 5176 52,7110
47 534 5176 52,710
2,188 2,188
(856) {856)
- (12 (12)

110 (110) =
48,976 5,054 54,030
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Consolidated Balance sheets as at 31 July 2024

Notes Group College Group College
2024 2024 2023 2023
£000 £000 £'000 £'000

Restated Restated
Non current assets

Tangible Fixed assets 11 91,557 91,539 91,523 91,496
Investment Properties 12 3,887 3,887 3,687 3,687
Investments 13 £Y &1 49 49
Joint Venture Investment 14 1,045 1,045 563 563
96,526 96,508 95,822 95,795
Current assets
Stocks 332 332 316 316
Trade and other receivables 15 51775 5,867 4,179 4,304
Cash and cash equivalents 20 9,221 9,170 12,845 12,818
15,328 15,369 17,340 17,438
Less: Creditors — amounts falling due 16 (14,118)  (14,185) (13,372} (13,469)
within one year
Net current assets 1,212 1,184 3,968 3,969
Total assets less current liabilities 97,738 97,692 99,790 99,764
Creditors — amounts falling due after 17 (43,271) (43,271} {46,686) {46,686)
more than one year
Provisions
Defined benefit obligations 19 . - - -
Other provisions 19 (391) {391) (368) {368)
Total net assets/(liabilities) 54,076 54,030 52,736 52,710

Unrestricted Reserves

Income and expenditure account 49,022 48,976 47,560 47,534
Revaluation reserve 5,054 5,054 5178 5176
Total unrestricted reserves 54,076 54,030 52,736 52,710

The fingncial statements on pages 26 to 53 were approved and authorised for Issue by the Corporation
on 5 Detamber 2024 and were signed on its behalf by:

Andy Berry

Chair of Governors Accounting Officer
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 July 2024

Cash flow from operating activities
Surplus /{Deficit) for the year
Adjustments for non-cash items
Depreciation

Amortisation of deferred capital grant
Joint venture share of profit

(Increase) in stocks

Decrease / {Increase) in debtors

Increase in creditors due within ane year
Pensions costs less contributions payable
Adjustments for investing or financing activities
Investment income

Interest payable

Loss on sale of fixed assets

Net cash flow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Investment income

Payments made to acquire fixed assets
Payments made to acquire investment property
Capital grants received

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid

Repayments of amounts borrowed

Capital element of finance lease rental payments

Decrease / Increase in cash and cash equivalents in the year

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end ofthe year

Notes

20

20

Bridgwater & Taunton College

2024 2023
£7000 £000
2,201 (1,318)
3,904 3477
(2,323) (1,949)
(483) (13)
(16) (12}
(1,546) 1,859
735 3,031
(824) 2,107
(386) (301)
293 328
57 29
1,612 7,238
386 301
(3,994) (6,730)
(200) (105)
265 2,781
(3,543) (3,753)
(293) (328)
(1,386) (1,379)
(14) (14)
(1,693) (1,721)
(3,624) 1,764
12,845 11,081
9,221 12,845
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Notes to the Accounts

1. Statement of accounting policies and estimation techniques

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in relation
to the financial statements.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting for
Further and Higher Education 2019 {the 2019 FE HE SORP), the College Accounts Direction for 2023 to 2024 and in
accorctance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 - “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and
Republic of Ireland” (FRS 102). The college is a public benefit entity and has therefore applied the relevant public benefit
requirements of FRS 102.

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the college's accounting policies.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the Colfege and its subsidiary, BTC Corporate Services Ltd, controlled by the
group. Control is achieved where the group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. Under the purchase methed of accounting, the results of subsidiary undertakings acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income and expenditure account from or up to the date on
which control of the undertaking passes. Intra-group sales and prefits are eliminated fully on consolidation.

Basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention except that, as disclosed in the
accounting policies, certain items are shown at fair value,

Going concemn

The activities of the College, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and performance and including
the impact of UK economic uncerfainty of inflation, the ongoing potential for pandemic reoccurrence, and Government policy
in respect of the FE College sector. The financial position of the College, its cashflow, liquidity and borrowings are presented
in the Financial Statements and accompanying nctes.

The Governing Body continues to adopt the going concem basis of preparation in light of the group’s net current assets of
£1,212k (2023: net current assets of £3,968k) and net assets of £54.076m (2023: net assets of £52.736m}), and the ongoing
success of the College, and for the following reasons.

o Included within creditors falling due within one year, and in accordance with FRS 102 and the SORP, is deferred income
relating to government capital grants of £2,103m and other deferred income (included within accruals and deferred
income) of £63k — neither of these liabilities represent future cash outflows and will be released to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in subsequent accounting periods.

¢ The College cumrently has £853k of fixed term (for 25 years to 2028) loans outstanding with bankers, £1.0m from BIS and
£4.465m Somerset County Council for a fixed term of 20 years to 2040 with interest capitalised until November 2021.
Bank borrowing is secured by a fixed and floating charge on certain College assets and is subject to a number of financial
covenants. The Governing Body have, in assessing both the availability of the existing facilities and capacity to obtain
new facilities if required, considered the forecast for the peried to December 2024 and to the date of approval of these
financial statements, the financial projections and its on-going relationship with (and most recent assurances received
from} the bankers. Whilst accepting there can be no certainty, the Governing Body are satisfied that the College will
centinue to operate within, and meet the scheduled repayments of, its existing facilities for the foreseeable future.

Accordingly the College has a reasonable expectation that it has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for

the foreseeable future, and for this reason, will continue to adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of its Financial
Statements.
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Recognition of income
Revenue Grant Funding

Govemnment revenue grants include funding body recurrent grants and other grants and are accounted for under the accrual
model as permitted by FRS 102. Funding body recurrent grants are measured in line with best estimates for the period of what
is receivable and depend on the particular income stream involved. Any under or over achievement for the Adult Education
Budget is adjusted for and reflected in the level of recurrent grant recognised in the income and expenditure account. The
final grant income is normally determined with the conclusion of the year end reconciliation process with the funding body
following the year end, and the results of any funding audits. 16-18 learner-responsive funding is not normally subject to
reconciliation and is therefore not subject to contract adjustments.

The recument grant from Office for Students represents the funding allocations attributable to the curent financial year and is
credited direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Grants (including research grants) from non-government sources are recognised in income when the College is entitled to the
income and performance-related conditions have been met. Income received in advance of performance related conditions
being met is recognised as deferred income within creditors on the balance sheet and released to income as the conditions
are met.

Capital Grant Funding

Government capital grants are capitalised, held as deferred income and recognised in income over the expected useful life of
the asset, under the accrual method as permitted by FRS 102. Other capital grants are recognised in income when the College
is entitled to the funds subject to any performance related conditions being met.

Fee Income

Income from tuition fees is stated gross of any expenditure which is not a discount and is recognised in the period for which it
is received.

Investment income

All income from short-term deposits is credited to the income and expenditure account in the period in which it is eaned on a
receivable basis.

Accounting for post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits to employees of the College are principally provided by the Local Govemment Pension Scheme
(LGPS) and Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS). These are defined benefit plans, which are externally funded and contracted
out of the State Second Pension.

Somerset Local Government Pension Scheme {LGPS)

The LGPS is a funded scheme. The assets of the LGPS are measured using closing fair values. LGPS liabilities are measured
using the projected unit credit method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent
term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance
sheet date. The amounts charged fo operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions,
benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net
defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and comprises the interest cost
on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the
scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the
interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in interest and other finance
costs. Actuarial gains and losses are recegnised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS)

The TPS is an unfunded scheme. Contributions to the TPS are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees’
working lives with the College in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future
pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by qualified actuaries on the basis of valuations using a prospective

benefit method. In contrast to LGPS, the TPS is a multi-employer scheme and the College is unable to identify its share of the
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underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined
contribution plan and the contributions recognised as an expense in the income statement in the periods during which services
are rendered by employees.

Short term Employment benefits

Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences (holiday pay) are recognised as an expense in
the year in which the employees render service to the College. Any unused benefits are accrued and measured as the
additional amount the College expects to pay as a result of the unused entitiement.

Enhanced Pensions
The actual cost of any enhanced ongoing pension te a former member of staff is paid by a College annually. An estimate of
the expected future cost of any enhancement to the ongoing pension of a former member of staff is charged in fuli to the

College’s income in the year that the member of staff retires. In subsequent years a charge is made fo provisions in the
balance sheet using the enhanced pension valuation provided by the funding bodies.

Non-current Assets - Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Land and buildings

Freehold buildings, including majer adaptations, are depreciated over their expected useful economic life o the College of
between 5 and 50 years.

Where land and buildings, including majer adaptions, are acquired with the aid of specific grants, they are capitalised and
depreciated as above. Freehold land is not depreciated as it is considered to have an infinite useful life. The deferred income
is allocated between creditors due within one year and those due after more than one year.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shorifalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts

are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.

Assefs under construction

Assets under construction are accounted for at cost, based on the value of architects’ certificates and other direct costs,
incurred to 31 July. They are not depreciated until they are brought into use.

Subsequent expendifure on existing fixed assets

Where significant expenditure is incurred on tangible fixed assets after initial purchase it is charged to income in the period it
is incurred, unless it increases the future benefits to the College, in which case itis capitalised and depreciated on the relevant
basis.

Equipment

Equipment costing less than £2,500 per individual item is recognised as expenditure in the period of acquisition. All other
equipment is capitalised at cost.

Capitalised equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over its remaining useful economic life as follows:

e technical equipment 15% per year straight line

e motor vehicles 15% - 40% per year straight line
o  fumniure, fixtures and fittings 2% - 30% per year straight line
e computer equipment 3% - 40% per year sfraight line
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenditure in the period in which they are incurred.

Leased assets

Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight-ine basis over the lease term to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. Any lease premiums or incentives relating to leases signed after 1st August 2014
are spread over the minimum lease term. The College has taken advantage of the transitional exemptions in FRS 102 and
has retained the policy of spreading lease premiums and incentives to the date of the first market rent review for leases signed
before 15t August 2014.

Leasing agreements which transfer to the College substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership of an asset are treated
as finance leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised initially at the fair value of the leased asset (or, if lower, the present value of
minimum lease payments) at the inception of the lease. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance
sheet as a finance lease obligation, Assets held under finance leases are included in tangible fixed assets and depreciated
and assessed for impairment losses in the same way as owned assets.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liabifity. The
finance charges are allocated over the period of the lease in proportion to the capital element outstanding.

Investments

Listed investments held as non-current assets and current asset investments, which may include listed investments, are stated
at fair value, with movements recognised in Comprehensive Income. Investments comprising unguoted equity instruments
are measured at fair value, estimated using a valuation technique.

Joint Ventures
The College's investment in its joint venture operation is stafed at cost. These financial statements consolidate the results and
financial position of the joint venture although further details of these are included in Note 14 to these financial statements.

Investment property

Certain of the College's properties are held for long-term investment. Investment properties are accounted for in accordance
with FRS 102 as follows:

No depreciation is provided in respect of investment properties. Invesiment properties for which fair value can be measured
reliably without cost or effort on an ongoing basis are measured at fair value annually with any change recognised in the profit
and loss account.

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of their cost and net realisable value, being selling price less costs to sell. Where necessary,
provision is made for obsolete, slow-moving and defective items.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts. Deposits are repayable on demand if they are in
practice available within 24 hours without penalty.

Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant
risk of change in value. An investment qualifies as a cash equivalent when it has maturity of three months or less from the date
of acquisition,
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Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument’s contractual obligations, rather
than the financial instrument’s legal form.

All loans, investments and short term deposits held by the College are classified as basic financial instruments in accordance
with FRS 102. These instruments are initially recorded at the transacticn price less any transaction costs {historical cost). FRS
102 requires that basic financial instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost, however the College has
calculated that the difference between the historical cost and amortised cost basis is not material and so these financial
instruments are stated on the balance sheet at historical cost. Loans and investments that are payable or receivable within

one year are not discounted.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are franslated at the rates of exchange ruiing at the end of
the financial period with afl resulting exchange differences being taken to income in the period in which they arise.

Taxation

The College is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule § Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets the
definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the College is potentially exempt from taxation
in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by sections 478-488 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010
or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, fo the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively
to charitable purposes.

The College is partially exempt in respect of Value Added Tax, so that it can only recover around 0.91% of the VAT charged
onitsinputs. Irrecoverable VAT on inputs is included in the costs of such inputs and added fo the cost of tangible fixed assets
as appropriate, where the inputs themselves are tangible fixed assets by nature.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the College has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable
that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of

the obligation.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to settle the obligation is recognised
at present value using a pre-tax discount rate. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost in the statement of
comprehensive income in the period it arises.

A contingent liability arises from a past event that gives the College a possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occumence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the College. Contingent liabilities also

arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet but are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Agency arrangements

The College acts as an agent in the collection and payment of discretionary support funds. Related payments received from
the funding bodies and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the income and expenditure of the College
where the College is exposed to minimal risk or enjoys minimal econamic benefit related to the transaction.
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Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
in preparing these financial statements, management have made the following judgements:

Determine whether the going concern basis of preparation remains appropriate, as described above.

Determine whether leases entered into by the College either as a lessor or a lessee are operating or finance leases.
These decisions depend on an assessment of whether the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred from
the lessor to the lessee on a lease by lease basis.

s  Determine whether there are indicators of impairment of the College’s tangible assets. Factors taken into consideration
in reaching such a decision include the economic viability and expected future financial performance of the asset and
where it is a component of a larger cash-generating unit, the viability and expected future performance of that unit.

» Determine which properties owned by the College meet the definition of operating properties (tangible fixed assets) or
investment properties in accordance with FRS 102 and the SORP

Other key sources of estimation uncertainty

e Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are depreciated over their useful lives taking into account residual
values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary depending
on a number of factors. In re-assessing asset lives, factors such as technological innovation and maintenance programmes
are taken into account. Residual value assessments consider issues such as future market conditions, the remaining life of
the asset and projected disposal values.

s Investment Property

Investment properties are carried at fair value, which requires estimation as to the current market value of the properties. An
independent chartered surveyor valuation has been obtained as at 31 July 2020, with a Governors valuation undertaken as
of 31 July 2024, details of which are disclosed in Note 12,

e Local Government Pension Scheme

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors that are
determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income)
for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 25, will impact the
carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2021 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 July 2024. Any
differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the
carrying amount of the pension liability.

As at 31 July 2024, the actuarial valuation for the Group includes a surplus totalling £3,286k {2022/23 surplus £6,782k). This
surplus has not been recognised within the financial statements.

High UK corporate bond yields have resulted in high accounting discount rates which contributed to the closing surplus
posilion. There is no specific guidance in FRS 102 in relation to surplus balances, therefore reference has been made to IAS
19. This requires any surplus recognition to be limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of either
refunds or reduced future contributions (the asset ceiling).

The right to a refund would occur in the form of a credit payable to the College, for example on exiling the pension fund.
Whether any refund is provided is governed by Regulation 64 of the 2013 Local Gavernment Pension Scheme Regulations
and set out in the specific local authority funding strategy statement. The payment of this credit is at the discretion of the local
authority based on a variety of pre-determined factors. Given there are no circumstances to suggest an exit from the fund and
the determination of any credit is outside the control of the College, there is no basis to recognise any surplus.

With regards to reduced contributions, [AS 19 references minimum funding requirements used by certain schemes which limit
the scope for contribution reductions. The LGPS administering authority must obtain a rates and adjustments certificate every
three years that shows the contributions to be paid by each employer to the pension fund for the following three years, thereby
limiting the availability of any contribution reductions. Additionally, the local authority funding strategy statement provides for
potential reductions in future contributions, but these would be at the discretion of the local authority with, in the majerity of

cases, academies being part of a stabilisation approach which sets a limit on any change to contributions e.g. to 1% of pay
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per year. This suggests minimum funding requirements are applicable to the College as determined by IAS19. When actuary
asset ceiling calculations assume that minimum funding requirements exist, they provide an asset ceiling value of £Nil.

Based on the above, it cannot be determined that a flow of future benefits is probable therefore no asset has been recognised.
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2 Funding body grants

Recurrent grants

Education and Skills Funding Agency - adult
Educaticn and Skills Funding Agency — 16-18
Education and Skills Funding Agency - apprenticeships
Office for students

Specific grants

Teacher Pension Scheme contribution grant

Releases of government capital grants

LSF Administration Fee

Total

Office for Students (OfS})

Grant income from OfS
Total

Bridgwater & Taunton College

2024 2024 2023 2023
Group College Group College
£000 £'000 £'000 £000
6,878 6,878 5,409 5,409
22,718 22718 21,664 21,664
12439 12438 11,360 11,360
527 527 482 482
1,189 1,189 906 906
2,323 2,323 1,949 1,949
32 32 35 35
46,106 46,106 41,805 41,805
2024 2024 2023 2023
Group College Group College
£°000 £000 £'000 £000
434 434 438 438
434 434 438 438

The OfS regulates higher education in colleges. The information in the table above relates to courses at Level 4 and above.
[n order to meet the requirements of the OfS Accounts Direction a separate note showing the analysis of HE income is required

in the accounts.

3 Tuition fees and education contracts

Adult education fees
Apprenticeship fees and contracts
Fees for HE loan supported courses
LEA and Schools Activity
[nterational students fees

Total tuition fees

Education contracts

Total

4  Other grants and contracts

Erasmus
Other grants and contracts

Total

2024 2024 2023 2023
Group College Group College
£'000 £000 £°000 £000
3,194 3,194 3,141 3,141
1,178 1,178 1,034 1,034
2,738 2,738 2,790 2,790
141 141 115 115
163 163 - -
7414 7414 7,080 7,080
1,030 1,030 649 649
8,444 8,444 7,729 7,729
2024 2024 2023 2023
Group College Group College
£000 £000 £°000 £°000
98 98 327 327
743 743 781 781
841 841 1,108 1,108
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5 Otherincome

Catering and residences

Farming activities

Other income generating activities
Miscellaneous income

Total

6 Investment income

Other interest receivable

Net return on pension scheme (note 25)

Total

7 Staff costs — Group

Bridgwater & Taunton College

2024 2024 2023 2023
Group College Group College
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
4,032 4,032 2,734 2,734
1,099 1,099 1,263 1,263
2,491 2,558 2,267 2,34
1,356 1,356 1,219 1,219
8,978 9,045 7,483 7,547
2024 2024 2023 2023
Group College Group  College
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
386 386 301 301
425 422
811 808 301 3

The average number of persons {including key management personnel) employed by the Group during the year was:

Teaching staff
Nen-teaching staff

Staff costs for the above persons

Wages and salaries

Sacial security costs

Employer pension costs

FRS 102 recurring pension costs

Payroll sub total
Contracted out staffing services

Restructuring costs - Contractual

Total Staff costs

2024 2023
No. No.
788 775
392 380

1,180 1,155

2024 2023

£1000 £'000

28,866 26,951

2,613 2,363

5,967 5,033

(378) 1,582

37,068 35,929

511 771

- 37,579 36,700
44 43

37,623 36,743
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Key management personnel

Bridgwater & Taunton College

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the College and are represented by Senior Management Team which comprises the Principal and Chief Executive,

Vice Principal, Assistant Principals and Directors.

Emoluments of Key management personnel, Accounting Officer and other higher paid staff

The number of key management personnel including the Accounting Officer was:

2024
No.

9

2023
No.

The number of key management personne! and other higher paid staff who received annual emoluments, excluding
employer contributions to national insurance and pensicns but including benefits in kind, in the following ranges was:

Key management
personnel
2024 2023
No. No.

£60,001 to £65,000 p.a. - -
£65,001 to £70,000 p.a. - -
£70,001 to £75,000 p.a. - -
£75,001 to £80,000 p.a. - -
£80,001 to £85,000 p.a. -
£85,001 to £90,000 p.a. - -
£90,001 to £95,000 p.a.
£05,001 to £100,000 p.a. -
£100,001 to £105,000 p.a. -
£105,001 to £110,000 p.a. - -
£110,001 to £115,000 p.2.
£115,001 to £120,000 p.a. 2
£120,001 to £125,000 p.a. - -
£125,001 to £130,000 p.a. 1 -
£130,001 to £135,000 p.a. . 1
£135,001 to £140,000 p.a. . -
£140,001 to £145,000 p.a. 1
£145,001 to £150,000 p.a.
£150,001 to £155,000 p.a.
£155,001 to £160,000 p.a.
£160,001 to £165,000 p.a.
£165,001 to £170,000 p.a.
£170,001 to £175,000 p.a. - -
£175,001 to £180,000 p.a. - 1
£180,001 to £185,000 p.a.
£185,001 to £190,000 p.a. -
£190,001 to £195,000 p.a. 1

h -

-

Other staff

2024 2023
No. No.
] 4
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Key management personnel remuneration is made up as follows:

2024 2023
£000 £'000
Salaries — gross of salary sacrifice and waived enrolments 1,129 1,042
Employers National Insurance 145 134
1,274 1,176
Pension contributions 275 236
Total key management personnel remuneration 1,549 1,412

The above compensation includes amount paid to the Principal and Chief Executive who is the accounting officer and

who is also the highest paid member of staff. Their pay and remuneration is as follows:

2024 2023

Highest paid officer £:000 £000

Salary (excluding employers Ni) 190 180

Pension contributions 48 43
Benefit in kind 5

243 223

The remuneration package of Key management staff, including the Principal and Chief Executive, is subject to annual review
by the Remuneration Committee of the Governing Body who use benchmarking information to provide objective guidance.

The Principal and Chief Executive reports to the Chair of Governing Body, who undertakes an annual review of his
performance against the College's overali objectives using both qualitative and quantitative measures of performance.

Relationship of Principal/Chief Executive pay and remuneration expressed as a multiple

2024
Principal's basic salary as a multiple of the median of all staff 6.00
Principal and CEC's total remuneration as a multiple of the median of all staff 7.72

Severance payments for all staff
The group paid one severance payment in the year, disclosed in the following bands:
0-£25,000 £5,000
£25,001 - £50,000 -
£50,001 - £100,000
£100,001 - £150,000
£150,000+

2023
6.00

6.17

Included in staff restructuring costs are special severance payments totalling £5,000 {2023: £27 .5k). Individually, the

payments were; £5,000
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8  Other operating expenses

2024 2024 2023 2023
Group College Group College
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Teaching costs 11,124 11,124 10,169 10,169
Non-teaching costs 5,332 6,265 4,184 4,961
Premises costs 5,167 5,167 4,317 4,317
Total 21,623 22,556 18,670 19,447
Other operating expenses include: 2024 2023
£000 £000
Auditors’ remuneration:
Financial statements audit 54 50
Other services provided by financial statements 8 1
auditors
Internat augdit 50 46
Subcontracting 1,543 1,832
lLosses on disposal of non-current assets 57 29
Hire of assets under operating leases 260 310
2024 2023
£°000 £'000
Access investment 75 75
Financial support o students (Bursaries) ) 30 3
105 105

The Coflege has an access and participation plan that has been approved by the OfS's director of fair access and participation.

Write offs and losses

The total value of debts written off in the year ending 31 July 2024 for the group was £73k (2022/23; £67k). 1 debt was written
off was valued over £5k (2022/23; None).

Guarantees, letters of comfort and indemnities

The group has not pravided any guarantees, lefters of comfort of indemnities in the year ending 31 July 2024
Compensation payments and ex-gratia payments

The group has not made any compensation payments of ex-gratia payments in the year ending 31 July 2024

9 Interest and other finance costs — Group and College

2024 2024 2023 2023

Group College Group  College

£000 £'000 £°000 £000

On bank loans, overdrafts and other loans: 293 293 328 328
293 293 328 328

Net interest on defined pension liability (note 25) - - 525 519
Net interest on enhanced pension liability 19 19 14 14
Total 312 312 867 861
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10 Surplus / {Deficit) on continuing operations for the year - Group and College
The surplus / deficit on continuing operations for the year is
made up as folfows:-

2024 2024 2023 2023

Group College Group  College

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Operating surplus on continuing activities before FRS 102 934 914 7490 775
pension adjustments

FRS 102 Pension adjustments - Recurming 784 791 {2,121) (2,083}

Surplus / (Deficit) before other gains and losses 1,718 1,705 (1,331) {1,308)

11 Tangible fixed assets (Group)
Biological Land and buildings Equipment  Assets in the Total

Assets course of
construction
Dairy Freehold Temporary
Herd
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Cost or valuation
At 1 August 2023 501 116,029 1,434 11,109 1,133 130,208
Additions 44 15 2 52 3881 3,994
Transfers - 1,041 273 641 (1,955) -
Disposals - - - (79) {55} {134)
At 31 July 2024 545 117,085 1,709 11,723 3,004 134,066
Depreciation
At 1 August 2023 - 31,061 304 7,318 - 38,683
Charge for the year - 2,855 127 1,122 - 3,904
Elimination in respect of - - - (78) - {78
disposals
At 31 July 2024 . 33,716 431 8,362 « 42,509
Net book value at 31 July 2024 545 83,369 1,278 3,361 3,004 91,557
Net book value at 31 July 2023 501 84,968 1,130 379 1,133 91,523
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Tangible fixed assets {College only)
Biological Land and buildings Equipment  Assets in the Total

Assets course of
construction
Dairy Freehold Temporary
Herd
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Cost or valuation
At 1 August 2023 501 116,029 1,434 11,072 1,133 130,169
Additions 44 15 2 52 3,881 3,994
Transfers - 1,041 273 641 (1,955) -
Disposals - - - (79) (55) (134)
At 31 July 2024 545 117,085 1,709 11,686 3,004 134,029
Depreciation
At 1 August 2023 - 31,061 304 7,308 - 388673
Charge for the year - 2,655 127 1,113 - 3,895
Elimination in respect of - - - (78) - (78)
disposals
At 31 July 2024 . 33,716 431 8,343 - 42,490
Net book value at 31 July 2024 545 83,369 1,278 3,343 3,004 91,539
Net bock value at 31 July 2023 501 84,968 1,130 3,764 1,133 91,496

The net book value of equipment includes an amount of £26k (2023: £40k} in respect of assets held under finance leases.
The depreciation charge on these assets for the year was £15k (2023 £20k).

12  Investment properties — College and Group

2024 2023

Group Group

£'000 £'000

Valuation brought forward 3,687 3,582

Additions 200 105
Revaluation to market value

Total 3887 3,687

The property was valued on a fair value basis at £3,500k by Alder King LLP, an independent chartered surveyor, as at 31 July
2020. A Governors' Valuation was undertaken on 31 July 2023, the property was valued on a fair value basis of £3,582k.

13  Non-current investments - College and Group

2024 2023

Group Group

£'000 £'000

Other non-current asset investments 37 49
Total 37 - 49

The College owns 607 £1 shares of National Milk Records plc, a company incorporated in England and Wales, and 1,941
£1 shares of Genus plc, a company incerporated in England and Wales.

BTC Corporate Services Ltd, a company limited by guarantee, was incorporated on 16 July 2021. It remained dormant
until 1 November 2021, after which the principal activity of the company is combined facility support services.
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Bridgwater & Taunton Colflege

Through the merger with Somerset College of Arts and Technology the College formally established & joint venture
arrangement with Wiltshire College through The Colleges’ Partnership Limited ({formerly Wiltshire and Scmerset Colleges’
Partnership Limited) a Company limited by guarantee. The Company is recognised by HMRC as a charity for tax purposes.

The investment in the joint venture is shown in the balance sheet at cost of acquisition {ie zero).

There are no issued shares held by each member as the entity has been constituted as a company limited by guarantee.

The Company is involved in the delivery of education, training and assessment, with the maijority of the current turnover
relating to the delivery of apprenticeships to soldiers of the Royal Corps of Signals and the Royal Armoured

Corps/Armoured Infantry.

The accounting pericd is coterminous with the College at 31 July 2024.

The balance sheet of the joint venture company at 31 July 2024 comprises the following:

Tangible fixed assets
Current assets

Creditors due within one year
Total

50% share

2024 2023
£2000 £000
71 109
3,458 2,701
(1,438) (1,685)
2,001 1,125
1,045 T 563

The joint venture company reported the following performance for the year ended 31 July 2024

Tummover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Administrative expenses

Interest receivable and similar income
Profit before and after tax

50% share

15 Trade and other receivables

Amounts falling due within one year:

Trade receivables

Amounts due from group undertakings
Prepayments and accrued income

Amounts owed by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency (ESFA)

Total

2024 2023
£000 £'000
7.507 4,997

{3,860) (3,406)
3,647 1,591
(2,686) {1,571)

4 5

965 25

482 13

2024 2024 2023 2023
Group College Group College
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
1,574 1,574 968 968
- 92 - 125
2,955 2,955 2,161 2,161
1,246 1,246 1,050 1,050
5,775 5,867 4179 4,304
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16  Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2024 2024 2023 2023

Group College Group College

£'000 £000 £000 £'000

Bank loans 394 394 386 386

ESFA loan 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

Obligations under finance leases 14 14 14 14

Trade payables 3.647 3,647 2,321 2,3

Amounts due from group undertakings - 94 - 110

Other taxation and social security 639 631 589 582

Accruals and deferred income 5,998 5,981 6,157 6,151

Deferred income - government capital grants 2,103 2,103 2,119 2119

Amounts owed to the Education and Skills Funding Agency 321 3 785 785

Total 14116 14,185 13,3711 13,468
17  Creditors: amounts falling due after one year

2024 2024 2023 2023

Group College Group College

£'000 £'000 £000 £000

Bank loans 4,924 4,924 5318 5,318

ESFA loan - - 1,000 1,000

Obligations under finance leases 13 13 27 27

Accruals 4,483 4,483 4,448 4,448

Deferred income - government capital grants 33,851 33,851 35893 35,893

Total 43,2711 43,21 46,686 46,686

Govemment Capital Grants have been accounted for as follows -

SFA/BIS Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000

Balance on 1 August 2023 26,731 11,281 38,012

Cash received during year 171 94 265

Grant released to Income {1,763) {560) {2,323)

Balance on 31 July 2024 25139 10,815 35,954

Being:

Under 12 months 1,537 566 2,103

Over 12 months 23,602 10,249 33,851

Total 25,139 10,815 35,954
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18  Maturity of debt

(a) Loans
Loans are repayable as follows:
2024 2024 2023 2023
Group College Group College
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
In one year or less 1,394 1,394 1,386 1,386
Between one and two years 402 402 1,394 1,394
Between two and five years 1,045 1,045 1,232 1,232
In five years or more 3477 3477 3,692 3,692
Total 6,318 6,318 7,704 7,704

Bank loans totalling £853k (2023: £1,067k) are repayable by instalments falfing due between 1 August 2023 and 31 May
2028. Interest is charged at 7.275% per annum and the loans are secured on a portion of the freehold land and buildings
of the College.

A loan with the ESFA totalling £1,000k (2023; £2,000k) is repayable by instalments falling due between 1 August 2023 and
31 July 2025. Interest is charged at 1.038% per annum, and the lean is unsecured.

A loan with Somerset Council (formerly Sedgemoor District Council) totalling £4,465k (2023: £4,637k) is repayable by
instalments falling due between August 2023 and October 2040, Interest is charged at 4.50% per annum, and the loan is
unsecured.

{b} Finance leases
The net finance lease obligations to which the institution is committed are:

2024 2024 2023 2023

Group College Group College

£'000 £000 £'000 £'000

In one year or less 14 14 14 14

Between fwo and five years 13 13 27 27

Total 27 27 4 41
Finance lease obligations are secured on the assels to which they relate.

19  Provisions
Group
Defined benefit Enhanced Total
obligations pensions

£'000 £000 £'000

At 1 August 2023 - 368 368

Expenditure in the period (809) (24) (833)

Transferred from income and expenditure account 809 47 856

At 31 July 2024 - 391 391

Defined benefit obligations relate to the liabilities under the College's membership of the Local Government pension
Scheme, Further details are given in note 25.

The enhanced pension provision was transferred in upon the merger with Somerset College of Arls and Technology, and
relates to the cost of staff who have already left the College's employ and commitments for reorganisation costs from
which the College cannot reasonably withdraw at the balance sheet date. The principal assumptions for this calculation
are!
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2024 2023
Price inflation 2.8% 2.8%
Discount rate 4.8% 5.0%
20 Cash and cash equivalents - Group
At 1 August 2023 Cash At 31 July 2024
flows
£000 £'000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 12,845 (3,624) 9,221
Total ' 12,845 (3,624) 9,221
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents and net funds
At 1 August At 31 July
Non-cash
2023 Cash flow movements 2024
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Net cash:
Cash in hand and at bank 12,845 (3.624) - 9,221
12,845 (3,624) - 9,221
Debt: B
Debt due within 1 year (1,386) 1,386 (1,394) {1.394)
Debt due after 1 year {6,318) - 1,394 {4,924}
Finance lease obligations due within 1 year (14) 14 {14) {14)
Finance lease obligations due after 1 year {27) - 14 (13)
(7,745) 1,400 g {6,345)
Net funds 5,100 {2,224) . 2,876
21 Capital and other commitments
2024 2023
Group and College
£'000 £000

Commitments contracted for at 31 July 2024

- 2,070
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22  Lease obligations
At 31 July the College had minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

2024 2023
Group and College
£'000 £'000
Future minimum lease payments due
Land and buildings
Not later than one year - .
Later than one year and not later than five years -
Later than five years - -
Other
Not later than one year 279 39
Later than one year and not later than five years 218 1
Later than five years - -
497 50

23 Contingent liabilities
There are no contingent liabilities to report.

24  Events after the reporting period
There are no post balance sheet events to report.

25  Defined benefit obligations

The Group's employees belong to two principal post-employment benefit plans: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme England and Wales
(TPS}) for academic and related staff; and the Somerset Local Govemment Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which
is managed by Somerset County Council Pension Scheme. Both are multi-employer defined-benefit plans.

Total pension cost for the year 2024 2023
£000 £000
Teachers' Pension Scheme: contributions paid 2,984 2,455
Local Government Pension Scheme:;
Contributions paid 2,953 2,578
FRS 102 charge (378) 1,582
Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive income 2,575 4,160
Total Pension Cost for Year within staff costs 5,559 6,615

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The latest formal actuarial
valuation of the TPS was 31 March 2019 and of the LGPS 31 March 2022.

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.
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Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers’ Pension
Scheme Regulations 2014. These regulations apply to teachers in schools, colleges and other educational
establishments. Membership is automatic for teachers and lecturers at eligible institutions. Teachers and lecturers are able to

opt out of the TPS.
A full copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation can be found on the Teacher's Pension Scheme website.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a ‘pay as you go‘ basis - these contributions, along with those
made by employers, are credited to the Exchequer under arrangements govemned by the above Act. Retirement and other
pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102 (28.11), the TPS is a multi-employer pension plan. The College is unable to identify
its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan.

Accordingly, the College has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its contributions to the
scheme as if it were a defined-contribution plan. The College has set out above the informalion available on the plan and the
implications for the College in terms of the anticipated contribution rates.

The valuation of the TPS is carried cut in line with regulations made under the Public Service Pension Act 2013. Valuations
credit the teachers’ pension account with a real rate of return assuming funds are invested in notional investments that produce
that real rate of refum.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The latest actuarial review of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2020, The valuation report was published by the
Department for Education {the Department) in October 2023. The valuation reported total scheme liabilities (pensions
cumrently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service at the effective date of £262 billion, and notional
assets (estimated future contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222 billion giving
a notional past service deficit of £40 billion {compared to £22 billion in the 2016 valuation)

As a result of the valuation, employer contribution rates increased from 23.68% to 28.68% from April 2024
The pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted fo £2,984,000 (2023: £2,455,000)
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit plan, with the assets held in separate funds administered by Somerset County Council.
The total contributions made for the year ended 31 July 2024 were £3,851,738 of which employer's contributions totalled
£2,953,027 and employees’ contributions totalled £898,711. The employer contribution is 18%. Employee’s contributions
range between 5.5% and 12.5%, depending upon salary.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions
The following information is based upen a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2022 updated to 31 July 2022 by a
qualified independent actuary.

At 31 July At 31 July At31Jduly  At31July

2024 2024 2023 2023

Subsidiary College Subsidiary College

Rate of increase in salaries 3.90% 2.50% 3.85% 2.40%
Future pensions increases 2.90% 2.90% 2.85% 2.80%
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 5.00% 5.05% 5.20% 5.15%
Inflation assumption {CP!) 2.90% 2.90% 2.85% 2.80%
Commutation of pensions to lump sums 50% 50% 50% 50%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:
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Retiring today
Males

Females

Retiring in 20 years
Males

Females

Bridgwater & Taunton Coliege

Group and College

At 31 July
2024

Years

210
229

22.3
24.4

At 31 July
2024

Years

211
229

22.3
243

The Group's share of the assets in the plan at the balance sheet date and the expected rates of return were:

Equity instruments

Debt instruments

Other bonds

Property

Cash

Total fair value of plan assets

Weighted average expected long term rate of
return

Actual return on plan assets

Fair Value Fair Value
at 31 July at 31 July
2024 2023
£'000 £:000
79,990 72,966
4,499 3,046
12,952 9,747
7,381 7,494
2,983 2,923
107,805 96,176
10.57% 2.94%
10,239 2,758

The amount included in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefif pension plan and enhanced

pensions benefits is as follows:

Fair value of plan assets

Present value of plan liabilities

Present value of unfunded liabilities
Net pensions liability (Note 19)
Asset ceiling restriction

Amount recognised in balance sheet

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of the plan are as follows:

Amounts included in staff costs
Current service cost

Past service cost

Total

Amounts included in investment income

Net interest income
Total

2024 2023
£000 £000
107,805 96,176
(97,700) (89,356)
(37) (38)
10,068 6,782
{10,068) (6,782)
2024 2023
£/000 £/000
2,543 4,453
2,543 4,453
(a24) 525
(424) 525
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Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Return on pension plan assets 5,249 {434)
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of plan liabilities (3,205) 44661
Experience gains arising on defined benefit abligations 440 (18,430)
Asset ceiling restriction {3,286) {6,782)
Total {802) 19,015

Movement in net defined benefit (liability)/asset during year

2024 2023
£'000 £000
Net defined benefit liability in scheme at 1 August - (17,754)
Movement in year:
Current service cost (2,543) {4,453)
Employer contributions 2,989 2,944
Past service cost - -
Administration expenses (68) {73)
Net interest on the defined liability 424 {525)
Actuarial gain 2,484 26,643
Asset ceiling restriction {3,286} (6,782)
Net defined benefit liability at 31 July - -
Asset and Liability Reconciliation
2024 2023
£'000 £000
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations
Defined benefit obligations at start of period 89,394 111,046
Current service cost 2,543 4,453
Interest cost 4,566 3717
Contributions by Scheme participants 909 855
Experience gains and losses on defined benefit obligations (440) 18,430
Changes in financial assumptions 3414 (43,171)
Change in demographic assumptions {209} (3,316)
Estimated benefits paid {3) (5)
Past Service cost - -
Curtailments and seftlements (2,437) {2,615)
Defined benefit obligations at end of period 97,737 89,394
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Changes in fair value of plan assets

2024 2023

£'000 £000
Fair value of plan assets at start of period 89,394 93,292
Interest on plan assets 4,990 3,192
Return on plan assets 5,249 (434)
Employer contributicns 2,989 2,944
Confributions by Scheme participants 909 855
Estimated benefits paid (2,440) {2,620)
Administration expenses {68) (73)
Other actuarial loss - {980}
Asset ceiling restriction (3,286) {6,782)
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 97,737 89,394

26 Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the College’s operations and the composition of the Board of Govemors being drawn fram local public
and private sector organisations, it is inevitable that transactions will take place with organisations in which a member of the
board of governors may have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted at arm’s length and in
accordance with the College’s financial regulations and normal procurement procedures.

The total expenses paid to or on behalf of the Governors during the year was £2k; 4 governors (2023: £3k; 4 governars).
This represents travel and subsistence expenses and other out of pocket expenses incurred in attending Governor meetings
and charity events in their official capacity.

No Governor has received any remuneration or waived payments from the College during the year (2023: None}.
Senior Management Team
Bridgwater College Trust

Sales transactions in the year amounted to £nil (2023 - £1k). The outstanding amount owed to the College was £nil at the
year-end (2023 — nil}

Bridgwater College Academy

Sales transactions in the year amounted to £52k (2023 - £49k). The outstanding amount cwed to the Coliege was £11k
at the year-end (2023 - £12k)

Robert Blake Science School

Sales transactions in the year amounted to £42k (2023 — £40k). The outstanding amount owed to the College was £nil at
the year-end (2023 - £2k)

Brymore Academy

Sales transactions in the year amounted to £nil {2023 — £nil). There was no outstanding amount owed to the College at the
year-end {2023 - £nil}

Chiton Trinity Technology College

Sales transactions in the year amounted to £15k (2023 - £26k). The outstanding amount owed to the College was £nil at the
year-end (2023 - £1k)

BTC Corporate Services Lid

Purchase transactions in the year amounted to £943k (2023 - £943k). The outstanding amount owed by the College was
£94k at the year-end (2023 - £110k). A management fee was charged by Bridgwater & Taunton Cellege to BTC Corporate
services in the year amounting to £67k (2023 - £64k). The outstanding amount owed to the College from BTC Corporate
Services was £92k (2023 £114k)
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The Colleges’ Partnership Limited

The Company previously paid an educational support fee to the College, in conjunction with its joint venture partner Wiltshire

College.

Buring the period 1 August 2023 to 31 July 2024 accrued income amounting to £16k was outstanding to the College. The

outstanding amount owed to the College was £238k (2023 - £24(k),

Association of Colleges

Purchase transactions in the year amounted to £nil (2023 - £51k} The outstanding amount owed by the College was £nil

(2023 - £51k) (The College received the invoice for 23/24 in 22/23 and the invoice for 24/25 in 24/25)
South West Institute of Technology

Purchase transactions in the year amounted fo £6k (2023 - £14k) The outstanding amount owed by the College was £nil

(2023 - £nil)

Landex

Purchase transactions in the year amounted to £8k (2023 - £7k) The outstanding amount owed by the College was £nil

{2023 - £nil)

Governors

One of the Governors is on the board of Exeter University. Purchase transactions in the year amounted to £nil (2023 - £nil)

The outstanding amount owed by the College was £nil (2023 - £nil)

27 Amounts disbursed as agent - Learner support funds

2024 2023
£'000 £'000
Funding body grants — bursary support 57 30
Funding body grants - discretionary leamer support 1,130 1,280
Funding body grants - residential bursaries M 96
1,278 1,406
Disbursed to students (1,006) (774)
Administration costs (33) (35)
(1,039 (809)
Balance unspent as at 31 July, included in creditors 29 597

Funding body grants are available solely for students. In the majority of instances, the College only acts as & paying agent. In
these circumstances, the grants and related disbursements are therefore excluded from the Statement of Comprehensive

[ncome.

28 Past Balance Sheet Events

A proposal for Strode College to merge with Bridgwater & Taunton College has been made, this is now subject to due diligence

and the FE Commissioner approval.
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